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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSLE

IN RE:

PETITION OF TENNESSEE AMERICAN
WATER COMPANY TO-CHANGE AND
INCREASE CERTAIN RATES AND CHARGES
SO AS PERMIT IT TO EARN A FAIR AND
ADEQUATE RATE OF RETURN ON ITS
PROPERTY USED AND USEFUL IN
FURNISHING WATER SERVICE TOITS
CUSTOMERS

Docket No. 06-00290

NOTICE OF FILING

The Authority’s lune 10. 2008 order in this docket required Tennessee American Water
Companiy {"Tennessee American”) 10 advise the Authority of the capital structure of Fennessee
American's parent company. American Water Works ("American Water") within six months of
any American Water initial public offering. On April 23. 2008, American Water's PO occurred.

Tennessee American hereby filés in this docket a true and accurate copy of American
Water's Form 10-Q dated August 12. 2008 for the quarter ended June 30. 2008 ("June 10-Q").
The June 10-Q sets forth American Water's capital strueture as of the quarter ended June 30.

2008, which is the most recent quarter for which American Water has audited financials.

The lune 2008 10-0 was provided to the Authorizy in a filing tided “Tennessee American Water-Company's First
Supplemental Response to TRA Datia Reguest No. 17 in Docket 08-00039 on August 12, 2008, but bas not been
fiked pieviotisly in this docket.
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
‘Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d} OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934 .

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008

OR
1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934
For the transition period from 0

Commissien fite; pumber 001-34028

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

(Exact name of reglsiranl as speckfied in ils charter)

Delaware 510063696
(Stte or ofher jurisdiction of {LR.S. Employer
incorperation or organtation} Tdensifieation No,)
1628 Lanrel Oals Road, Voorhees, NJ 08043
(Zip Code)

{Address of principal executivo officss)

(856) 346-3200

{Repisteant’s telephone aumber, Mclsding prea code)

Indicate by check mark whethes the registrant (1) has filed all reports required o be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and {2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. [ Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an acoeierated filer, a non-accelevated filer or a sinailer reporting
company. See he definitions of “large accelerated filer,” Hecelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxchange Act.

Accelerated filer ]
Smaller reporting company [

Large acceferated fiter {1
Non-accelerated filer 3
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.). [J Yes [l No
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Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Class : N Outstanding nt Aupust 12, 2008

Common Stoc;k. $0.01 pas value per share o 139,960,765 shares

TN-TRA-01-Q003, Attachment
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiery Companies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(En thousands, except per share data)

(Unandited)
June 38, Becember 31,
] 2|

] mNomxtility

Tellplony
Current assels
3] UL
Restricted funds
ity cus i ble
Allowance for uncollectible accounts

edtliifeven

-regulated trade and other receivables,
bl

118,052

Non net

Ioai608

The accotnpanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3
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American Water Worls Company, Inc, and Substdiary Companies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thoysands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
June 30, Becember 31,
2068 2087

4§79.831
i 24,206

741,239 T74.480

655,375

638,918

L. 3838

SEviAor eosEobTer 192,650

Accrued pension expense 250,722

] 158,552

63 123,871

TomteRnlak 009081 .2:005,449

Contributions in aid of construction $66,480 818,387
23

TOTAL CAI;KTALIZA’HON AND LIABILITIES $ 12,526,082 512,934,072

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financiel statements.

4
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Statements of Operations Wnandited)
(In thovsands, except per share data)

Thres Months Ended Six Months Ended
Jupe 3, June 39,
008 pallirg 28 27

67,307 131,223

Total operating expenses, net 46711 407,243  1,623.8%4
b : 74,808

¥ 45!4‘-498

i

Hoss) fro |
Net incorae (loss) $ 028 §

160,000

0,000 :

(1) amounts may not add dus to round up,
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3
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American Water Works Company, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except pez share data)

Six Monthy Ended

15,821
(833
6,554,

(425.960) (304,557
- (248) QI
798 15200

Cash and cash eq
Gl

2§ "B5 IR
$ 100,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6

TN-TRA-01-Q0035, Attachment



Fable of Contents

American Water Works Company, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Commen Stockholders' Equity
{Unandited) )

(In thousards, except per share dala)

Accomubated
Corarson Stock, $A1 Pay Value: Other Commen
500,00 Shares Authorized Poltin  (Acoumulsted  Comrehensive  —LIRSEESOCR  guooapiens

Sheres LBy

0461

sh Par Value Af Cost

i iRy estmEntibyiR
ontribution of cormmon stoc
RWE
Pension plan amortized to periodic
bg‘g_gﬁt cost;

“The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

7
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
(Iri thovsands, except per share data)

" Note 1; Basis of Preseritution

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of American Watcr Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies (the “Corapany™) at June 30,
2008, the consolidated statements of operations for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the consolidated staserents of
cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated statement of ¢hanges in comsmon stockholders' equity for the six
months ended June 30, 2008, are unavdited, but reflect all adjustments, which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly the
consolidated financial position, the consolidated changes in common stockholders' equity, he consolidated results of operations, and the
consolidated cash flows for the periods presented. All adjustients are of & normal, recurring nature, except as otherwise disclosed. Because they
cover interim periods, the unaudited consolidated financial statements and related notes to the consolidated financial statements do not inciude alt
disclosures and notes normally provided in aninuai finencial statements and, therefore, should be read int conjunction with the Company's
consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the Company's annual consclidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2007, The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year, due
primarily to the sezsonality of the Company's operattons

Note 2: New Accopating Pronouncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accouating Standards Board ("FASB™) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value
()puon for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — including an amendment of FASE Statement No, 1137 (“SFAS 159"}, This standard permits
entities 1o choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value, The ob;actwe is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mmgale volatility in reported eamings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differenily without
having to apply complex hedge aceounting provisions. SFAS 159 Js effective for years begmnmg January 1, 2008, The Company has not efected to
exercise the fair value irrevocable option, Therefore, the adoption of SFAS 159 did not have an impact on the Company's results of opclauons
financial position or cash flows.,

. In September 2006, the FASE issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied t 1.8, generally accepted accounting principles guidance requiring use of fair vahue,
establishes a framewdnk for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements, In February 2008, the FASE issued
FASB Staff Position SFAS 157-2 which aliows a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabikities {such as
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and gooéwxlt) that are required to be measured at fair value on a periodic basis {such as at acquisition
or impairment). The Company elected to use this deferral option and accordingly, only paruany adopted SFAS 157 on January |, 2008. SFAS 157 will
be adopted for the Company’s nonfinancial assets and Habilities valued ona non-recurring basis on January 1, 2009,

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities, and nonﬁnancial assets and Habilities
with recugring measurerents. The Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on & récurring basis during the period were cash and cash
eqmvalenrs, restricted funds and short-term: debt, These assets and labilities were measured at fair value on the baiance sheet date using quoted
pricss in active markets (level 1 inputs, as defined by SFAS 157). The adoption of SFAS 157 for the Company’s financial assets and liabilities did not
have a-material effect on the Company's results of operations, financial positjon or cash flows. The Company will be required to measure the assets of
its defined benefit pension and other post retirement welfare plans pursuant to SFAS 157 at the next measurement date, which will be December 31,
2008,

Note 3: Goodwill

In April of 2008, as a result of the pricing of the Company's inital public offering ("[PC"") (See Note 4}, management determined that an interim
triggering event ooowred and that it was appropriate to update its valuation analysis before the next scheduled anrmal test.

Based on this assessment, the Company performed an interim impairment test as of March 31, 2008, The Company coneluded that the carrying
value of its goodwill was impaired as a resubt of the current market price and trading levels of its commuon stock. The Company believes the offering
price was indicative of the value of the Company at March 31, 2008 and accordingly, based on those factors, the Company recorded an impairment
charge to goodwill related to its Regulated Businesses of 3750,000. The Company has reftected the tax effect of the Impairment as a discrete item for
purposes of caleulating its tax provision as the charge is considered an Infrequently oceurring or unusual itemn, The impairment charge was primarily
due to the matket price of the Company's common

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



T f Conte

stock (both the IPO price and the market price during subsequent teading) being less than what was anticipated during the Company's 2007 annual
test. Also contributing to the impairment was a decline in the fair value of the Company’s debt (due to increased market interest rates),

In developing the estimaied fair value of the Company’s reporting units, significant judgment was required. The Company determined the
estimated fair value of the reporting units utitizing a methodology consistent with its 2007 anmual test, Whenever possibie, market information
inchuding the initia) public offering price of the Company’s commen stock and subsequent trading price was used 1o update the Company's
assumptions. The methodology utilized a combination of the trading price of the Company’s common stock, an estimated control premium, trading
price market multiples of peer companies (regnlated water utifities) and the Company's discounted cash flow analysis based on the Company's five-
year business plan, each of which has differing weights. The majority of the weighting is applied to the traded price as this represents the market
objective evidence of fair vatug with minimal weight appited to the discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s goodwill by reporting wit:

Kegulated Nomcegulated
Unit Usits Consolidated

2456952
000)
2]

Balance at June 30, 2008 $1.576993 129682  § L706,675

The Company tay be required to recognize additional impairments iy the future, depending on, among other factors, a decline overa period of
time in the valuation multiples of comparable water utilities, a decline over & period of time of the Company's stock price or the lack of appreciation of
the Company's stock price to a evel conststent with peer companics or increases in cquity value. A decline in the forecasted resuits in the Company’s
business plan, such as changes in rafe case results of capital investment budgets or changes in the Company's interest rales may also resudt in an
incrementa! impairment charge,

As a result of the impairment RWE transferred $245,000 to the Company on May 13, 2008. This cash was used to reduce debt,

Note 4: Stockholders’ Equity
Corrpnion Stock

On April 28, 2008, RWE Aqus Holdings GmbH completed the panial divestiture of its investment in the Company In an initial public offering
(“IPC™) through the sake of 58,000 shares of common stock at an [PO price of $21.50, The selling stockholder granted the underwriters a 30 day option
to purchase up to an additional 8,700 shares of ke Company’s stock at a price of $21.50, On May 27, 2008 the Company anncunced the tnderwriters’
partial exercise of their over-allotment option to purchase 5,173 shares to cover over aHotments, The Company did not receive any proceeds from the
sale of shiares. Prior to the JFO, the Comipany was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE. After the TPO, and exercise of the underwriters” over-
aflotment option, RWE owns approximately 60% of the Company's common shares.

Fffective the first quurter of 2008, the Company's Board of Dircetors’ authotized 50,000 shares of par value $0.01 per share preferred stock. As of
June 30, 2008 there are no shares outstanding.

Stock Based Compensation

On April 22, 2008, 2 subsidiary of RWE contributed 90 shares of the Company's common stock to the Company and the Company granted 96
restricted stock awards, 269 restricted stock units and 2,078 stock options. The awards were issued to the Company’s employees and certain aon-
employee directors undet its 2007 Omnibus Beuity Compensation Plan (the “2007 Plan”). The total aggregate number of shares ¢f common stock that
may be issned under the 2007 Plan Is 6,000, The restricted stock units and the stock options were awarded in tvo grants with “Grant 1" vesting on
January 1, 2010 and “Grant 2” vesting January 1, 2011, Shares issued under the Plan may be authorized but unissued shares of Company stock or
reacquired shares of Company stock, including shares parchased by the Company on the open matket for purposes of the 2007 Plan.

¢
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The following table presents stock-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

Fhree Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007

;ij{estricted stock units

Stock-based compensation in operation and maintenance expense

I {
After-tax stock-baged compensation expense $ o8

(e G k)]
164§ 1410 § 207

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R}, “Share Based Payment” (“"SFAS 123(R)") the cost of services
received from employess in exchange for the isseance of stack options and restrivted stock awards is required to be' measured based on the grant date
fair value of the awards issved, The value of stock options and restricted stock awards at the date of the grant is amortized through expense over the
requisite service pertod using the straight-line method, adjusted for retirement eligible participants. All awards granted in 2008 are classified as equity,

Tn: addition to the requisite service period, 1,470 stock options and 190 restricted stock units are subject to performance-based vesting
requirements, The performance conditions are based on the achievernent of 120% of net income targets in 2008 and 2009, These stock option and
restricted stock awards will vest proportionately depending upon the level of achievement with 1,470 stock options and 190 restricted stock units

being the maximum.

“The Company recognizes expense for the portion of the awards where achipvement is considered probable. As of June 39, 2008, 630 stock option
and 82 restricted stock awards are not considered probable to meet performance conditions,

“Fhe Company steatified its grant populations and used historic employee turnover rates and general market data to estimate employee
forfeitures.

Stock Options

Non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock were granted under the 2007 Plan. The exercise price of the
stock options is equal to the fakr market value of the underlying stock on the date of option grant. Stock oplions granted become exercisable upon a
specified vesting date, The requisite service period for options granted js three years. All stock options expire seven years from the effective date of
the grant, The remaining vesting period of the stock options outstanding as of June 30, 2008 ranged from 1.5 years 1o 2.5 years. The fair value of each
option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The following table presents the assumptions used in the pricing model for grants and resulting grant date fair value of stock options granted.

Graat Grant
i

Expected volatility
Risks

The dividend vield is based on the Company's expected dividend payments and the 1PO stock price. Bxpected volatility is based on Ristoric
volatilities of traded conmmen stock of peer companies (regulated water conpanies) over the expected term of the stock options. The risk-free interest
rate is the market vield on U.S. Treasury strips with maturities similar to the expected term of the stock options. The expected term represents the
period of time the stock options are expected to be outsianding and is based on the “simplified method” as permitted by Staff Accounting Butletin

{“SAB") No. 107 and SAB No. 10,
The following table presents information with respect to stock option activity as of June 30, 2008,

10
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Owtsinnding Hxercise Price

X

e e Ly
Forfeite

There are zero options awards vested and no option awards have been exercised as of June 30, 2008,

As of June 30, 2008, $4,990 of total unrecognized compensation costs related 1o the norvested stock options is expected to be recognized over
the remaining average weighted-average period of 2.1 years.

Restricted Stock Units
" The Company granted restricted stock units under the 2007 Plan. The requisite seyvice period for restricted stock units is three years,

The following table presents information with respect to restricted stock unit activity as of June 30, 2008,

Grant Dase
Outstanding ¥air Value

As these restricted stock units woald have paid-out in cash if the PO was not completed, the Company reclassified the restricled stock units
from liability-classified awards to equity-classified awards as of the completion of the IPO. As of June 30, 2008, 82,641 of total unrecognized
compensation costs related to the nonvested restricted stock units is expected fo be recognized over the remalning weighted-average period of 2.2
years,

Restricted Stock
The Company granted restrieted stock ander the 2007 Plan. The requisite service period for the restricted stock is thres moriths.

The foHowing tabie presents information with respect (o restricted stock activity at June 30, 2008,

Grant Date
Outstanding Fair Yatue
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As of June 30, 2008, $428 of wtal unrecognized compensation costs related to the nonvested restricted stock units is expected to be recognized
in the third quarter of 2008.

Employee Stock Furchase Plan

The Company’s Nongualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP™) was effective as of July 1, 2008, Under the ESPP, employees can use
payroll deductions to acquire Company stock al a discount, The Company’s ESPP is considered compensatory under SFAS 123(R). No compensation
costs were Tecognized for the three or six months ended June 30, 2008,

Note 5: Comprehensive Income {L.oss)

The cornponents of combt’ehensive income (ioss) are as follows:

‘Thres WMonths Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 38
5(686,986). °

Eorers i i
Total comprehensive income (loss) $45.48 $49,170  $(687.136)  $51,660

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment
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Note 6: Long-Term Debt .
The Company primarily incurs long-term debt to fund capital expenditures at the regulated subsidiavies. The componerits of fong-term debl are as
follows,

Moturlty | June 30, Precember 31,
Dale 2008, 2t

18203278, 86,860 § 36,860

0.00%-6.88%

Total iong term debt C 8 4801 m $ 4 795 388

(8) Tax-exempt bonds which are rermarketed as money market bonds for periods up to 270 days (1 10 119 days during 2008 and 1 to 127 days during
2007). These bonds may be converted to other short-term varkible-rate structures, a fixed-rate structure or subject to redemption,

(b)  $24,860 of the total represents tax-exempt bonds which are sold at auction rates that are reset every 7 to 35 days. These bonds may be converted
to other short-term variable-rate structores, a fixed-rate structure or subject to redemption. The remaining $8,560 represents tax-exempt bonds
remarketed as money market bonds. See (a) above.

() Includes capital lease obligations of $1,909 and 31,982 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 respectively,

{® Inchudes fair value adjustmenss from acquisition purchase accounting,

The following long-term debt was issued in 2008:

Intersst

Mmum[ Aanount

2018 $110,000
90000
-1 Lsde

Total Issuances $20|.545

655%

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



Table of Contents

The following long-term debt and preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirements were repurchased or retived through optional redemption or
payment at maturity during 2008:

Interest

9

American Water Capital Corp. Senior notes-fixed rate
' 10F Aot

Gains from early extinguishment of debt included in Interest, net amounted to $0 for (he three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and $1,101 and
$8,164 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively.

Interest, net includes infexest income of approximately $2,961 and $4,619 for the three and six raonths ended June 30, 2008, respectively and $3,271 and
$5,093 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively.

Note 7: Short-Term Debt
'The compounents of short-term debt are a3 follows:

June 31, Deconsher 31,
2ARe G07

ortsterimidel g
Total short-term debt $24348 5 220514
Note 8: Income Taxes

The Company's estimated annual effective tax rate for 2008 is 39,5% compared to 39.6% for 2007, excluding various discrete items, The Company’s
actual effective x rate for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was 39.9% and 39.5%, respectively, The Company's actual effective rate for
the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 of (3.9%) and 39.6%, respectively, reflects the tax effect of the goodwill impairment as a discrete item as
the Company considers this charge an infrequently occunming or unusuai event,

I
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Note &: Pension and Other Postretivement Benefits
The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit costs:

‘Threz Months Ended Sk Months Ended
Jure 30, June 34,

2008 2007 2008 2807

3 8,221 $ 16442 $ 16,213
Uy
Three Meonths Ended Six Menths Ended
June 30, Jube 3,
I

(11,502) (10,332}

Actuarial loss
Fiodi

The Company contributed $46,000 to its defined benefit pension plan in the first six months of 2008 and expects (o contribute $30,000 during the
balance of 2008. In addition, the Company contributed $13,676 for the funding of its other postretirerient plans in the first six months of 2008 and
expects Lo contribute 13,676 during the balance of 2008,

Note 10; Cantingencies

OMI/Thames Water Stockton, Inc. (“OMI/TW™) is a 50/50 joint venture between a subsidiary of the Company and Operations Management
Intermational, Inc. (*OMI"). In February 2003, OMITW and the Clty of Stovkton California (the “City"”) enttered into a 20-year service contract for
capital improvements and management services of water, wastewater and storm waler utilities, By mutual agreement, OMITW and the City of
Stockton terminated the contract effective February 29, 2008 (the “Termination Date’™). Upon termination, responsibility for management and operation
of the system was retumed to the City, OMI/TW has agreed to provide a Hmited twelve month warranty refating to certain components of the facilities
that OMI/TW constructed (the “WW39 Plant”}, coramitied to pay for certain employee transition costs and assumed financial responsibility for
regulatory fines levied through the Termination Date, if any, resulting from OMETW's failuze 1o comply with 2pplicable National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System permit requizements and/or incidents traced fo design defects In the WW39 Phant, During 2007, the California State Water
Resources Control Board issued a notice of violation and a corresponding Settlement Communication related to a discharge into an adjacens river.
OMITW is responsible for any fines that may result from the Settlement Communication. Given the uncertainties related io resolving the remaining
issues described above, the Company has a logs reserve of approximately $4,000 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,

In 2007, the Company, through a subsidiary and an indirect 50% owned joint venture, completed construction of 2 water filtratiop plant for total
construction costs of approximately $32,000. Generally, as patt of the contractual terms relating to construction contracts, the Company provides a
one-year consiruction warranty period, As of June 3G, 2008, no claims have been made related to this warranty.

15

‘TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



Table of Contents

The Company is also routinely involved in condemnation proceedings and legal actions incident to the normal conduct of its business. At
June 30, 2008, the Company had acerved approximately $6,500 as probable losses and it is reasonably possible that additional losses could range up to
$30,000 for shese matters, For certain matters, the Company is unable to estimate possible losses. The Company believes that damages or setflements,
if any, recovered by plaintiffs in such claims or actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Note 11: Guarantess

The Cormpany, throngh a subsidiery, holds a 30% interest in American Water-Pridesa LLC (*AW-Pridesa™), a Delaware limited liability company.
Acciong Agua Corporation (USA) holds the remaining 50% interest, AW-Pridesa has coniracted with Tampa Bay Water (“Tampa Bay™), an interlocal
govenumental agency of the State of Florida, to remedy and operate the Tampa Bay Seawater Desalination Plant, The Company entered info a
guarawtee with Tampa Bay in November 2004 for the full and prompt performance of certain contraotuel obligations limited to 2 total aggregate Uability
of $35,000. Contractual obligations call for certain construction activities and manngement services to be completed setisfactorily, AW-Pridesa took
over operation of the plant in January 2005, At December 31, 2007, the plant was fully operational and suecessful performance testing of the
construction activities had been completed.

The Company provides financial guazantees or deposits fo ensure pecformance of certain of its obtigations on its nonregulated military
agreements and Operations & Maintenance agreements. These gnarantees and deposits totaled $475,148 and $475,278 at June 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, respectively,

Al Jutie 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, no accrvals have been made related to these guarantees.

Note 12: Environmental Matters

The Company’s waler and wastewater operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign requirements relating w environmental protection and
as such the Company periodically becomes subject to environmental claims in the normal course of business. Remediation costs that relate to an
existing condition caused by past operations are acorved when i is probable that these costs wiil be incurred and can be reasonably estimated.
Remediation costs accrued amounted 1o approximately $11,000 at Juse 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, At June 30, 2008, $10,100 of the reserve relates
16 a conservation agreement entered into by a subsidiary of the Company with the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Adminisiration requiring the
Company 10, among other provisions, implement certain measures 1o protect the sieethead trout and iis habitat in the Carmel River watershed fn the
state of California. The Company pursuss recovery of incurred costs through ali appropriate means, including regulatory recovery through customer
rates.

Note 13: Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

Basic vet incorme {loss) per common share, icome (1oss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, per common share and income (loss) from
continuing opetations per common share aze based on the weighted average munber of common shares outstanding. Outstanding shares consist of
issued shares Iess reasury stock, Dilated net income (loss) per common share, income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, per common
share and income (loss) from continuing operations per common share are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
adjusted for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents related to the restrieted stock, restricted stock units and stock options. The dilutive effect
of restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock options is calculated using the treasury stock method and expected proceeds 0B vesting of the
restricted stock and restricted stock units and exercise of the stock options. The following table sets forth the components of basic and diluted
earpings per share and shows the effect of the comumoen stock equivalents on the weighted average number of shares outstanding nsed in calenlaling
dituted earnings per share:
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Threo Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 38, June 3,

Net Income (loss) $ 45408 & 49,178 F(686,986) § 51,863

2 I!l S = T s
Average common shares outstanding —~ dilated £59,976 160,000 159,966 160,000

Options to purchase 608 shares of the Company’s common stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted common shares cutstanding
because the cakeulated proceeds from the exercise of the options were greater than the average market price of the Company's conmmon stock during
the three month peried ended June 30, 2008, There were also 190 resiricted stock anits and 1,470 stock options which were exchuded from the
calculation of diluted common shares outstanding becasse certain performance conditions were not satisfied as of June 30, 2008. Al of the potentially

dilutive securities have been excluded for the six months ended June 30, 2008 because they are anti-dilative. The Company had no potentially ditutive
shares for the three and six month periods ending June 30, 2607.

Note 14: Segment Information

The Company has two operating segments which are aiso the Company's two reportable segments referved to as the Regulated Businesses and Nop-
rogulated Businesses segments.
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The following table includes the Company's summarized segment information:

As of or for the Thces Monthis Ended
June 39, 2008

Repulatod nted Other Consulidated
0369

mpai 18
Total operaling expenscs,
ERIT

net

Jpsaem
257,523

As of or for the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007

Non-

Consolidated

As of or for the Skx Menths Ended

June 30, 7008
Neon«
Regulnted repulnted Other Ceonsolidated
$128,210 - - $ 1,096,184
3,260 131,23

756,000

As of or for the Six Months Erded
June 39, 2007
Nen-

it
De
o
802,469
13,071,585
T BUASST

(1) Management evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources based on several factors, of which the primary measure is
Adiusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not represent cash flow for perlods presented and should not be considered as an alternative 1o net income
as an indicator of the Company's operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows as a source of Hquidity. Adjusted BEBIT a5 defined by
the Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBIT as defined by other companies.
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The following table reconciles Adjusted EBIT, a3 defined by the Company, to income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes!

For the Three Moaths Ended
June 3, 2008
Noar Toiak
Reau!nicd (igg!nted
I§4‘?3 i 0%

For the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007
Non- Fotal

gulnled ~  Segmengs
= TN
¥

Tncome from continuing operations before income taxes $ 82,633

For e §ix Months Ended
June 39, 2R

None Tat
(Bupulated | regulited

 Sepments
53 183

Tt

For the Six Monibs Ended
Juze 30, 2007
Nan- Total
Repuiated regulated Sograeals
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Note 15: Tetton Water System Asset Sale

In May of 2008, the Company's California subsidiary reached an agreement with the San Lorenzo Valley Water District to sell ownership of its Felton
operating assets for tolal proceeds of $13,400, including $10,500 in cash and the assumption of $2,900 in debt, pending regulatory approval. The Fetton
water system serves approximately 1,330 customers,

Note 16: Subseguent Events

On July 28, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quartesly cash dividend payment of $0.20 per share payable on September 2, 2008 to all
shereholders of recond as of August 13, 2008,
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ITEM2,  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONPITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters within this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include “forward-locking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Bxchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements incladed in this Form 10-Q,
other than statements of historical fact, may constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words
suchas “may,” %hould,” Will" tould,” Estimates,” Predicts,” Potential” tontinue,” Hdnticipates,” Yelieves,” filans,” Expects,” Putnre” and
“intends” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements may invelve known and unknown risks, unceriainties and other factors that may cause
the actual results or performance to differ from those projected in the forward-looking statements. These statements are not guaraniees of future
performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond our control and difficult to predict and conld cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute 10
differences in results and cutcomes from those in our forward-looking statements include, without fimitation, those items discussed in the “Risk
Faciors” section or other sections in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4} prospectus filed April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, as
well as in ltem 1A of Part 1 of this Quarterly Report, All forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by such risk factors. We
undertake no obligation, other than as required by law, 1o update or revise any forward-logking statements, whether as a result of new information,
futtre events or otherwise.

CGENERAL

American Water Works Company, Inc, (herein referred to as "American Water” or the “Company™) is the largest investor-owned United States
water and wastewater wility company, as measured both by operating revenue and population served. Our primary business involves the ownership
of water and wastewater utilities that provide water and wastewater services to residential, commercial and industrial customers. The businesses that
provide these services are generally subject 1o economic regulation by state regnlatory agencies in the states in which they operate. We report these
results in our Regulated Businesses segment. We also provide services that are not subject to regulation by the state commissions, We report these
results in our Non-regulated Businesses segment. For further description of our businesses see the “Business™ section found in our Form 424(b)4}
prospectus fiied on April 24, 2608 with the Securities and BExchange Commission.

‘You should rend the following discussion in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and velated Notes included eisewhere in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and io our Prospectus filed with the SEC on April 24, 2008, with the information under the heading “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations™ in our Form 424(b)}(4) prospectus filed with the Securitics and Exchange
Commission on Apzil 24, 2008.

OVERVIEW

Financial Results American Water's net income was $45.5 mitlion for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to $49.2 million for the
three months ended Jupe 30, 2007. Income from continuing operations was $45.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, compared to $50.0
miftiosn for the three months ended June 30, 2007, Diluted earnings per average common share were $0.28 for the three months ended Jusie 3¢, 2008 as
compared to $0.31 for the three months ended June 30, 2007,

American Water's net loss, which inchudes an impairment charge, net of tax of $738.5 million, was $687.0 million, for the six months ended
June 30, 2008 as compared e net income of $31.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. Loss from continuing operations was $687.0 million for
the six months ended June 39, 2008, compared to income from continuing operations of $32.4 milkion for the six months ended June 30, 2007, Diluted
exrnings {foss) per average cormmon share were ($4.29) for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to $0.32 for the six months ended June 30,
2007, ‘

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $30.6 miilion compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to
increased tevenues in ot Regulated Businesses of $17.6 million which is Jargely atiributable to rate increases and revenues in our Non-regulated
Businesses which increased by $11.6 million due to increased Contract Operations Group and Homeowner Services Group revenues, pastiaily offset by
decreased revenues in our Applied Water Group, Offsetting the increased revenues were $39.5 million higher operating expenses for the three months
ended June 30, 2008, The incresse in operating expenses primarily resulted from increased operating expenses in our Regulated Businesses of $23.7
million for the three months ended June 3Q, 2008 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2007 This increase was
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mainly driven by higher employee related costs of $9.5 mifion due to $3.3 million of wages related to job reclassification of certain hourly employees
for services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.1 miliion primarily attributable to the issvance of awards gramied in connection with
the IPO), an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases and higher pension expense in 2008, In addition, the Regulated Businesses'
oainterance ¢costs ncreased by $6.3 million primarily due to higher removal costs, increased tank painting expenses as weli as higher costs of $0.9
million associated with a project in our Nlinois subsidiary to maintain vaives, Operating expenses in our Non-regulated Businesses also increased by
$16.0 mittion for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to three months ended June 30, 2007 as a result of higher operating and maintenance
expenses of $10.6 mijlion which corresponds with their increased revenues a5 well as a gain on sale of assets of $5.3 miltion recognized in 2007.

Other iterns affecting mcome from continuing operations for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared 10 the same period in the prior
year inchude increased allowance for funds used during construction (“AFUDC") of $3.2 miliion attributable to the increase in the construction work in
progress primarily in New Jersey and Miszouri and lower income tax expense of $2.5 miltion.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $68.9 million compared to the same period in the prios year primarily due to
increased revenues in our Repulated Businesses of $47.9 miltion which s Jargely attributable to rate increases and revenues in our Non-regulated
Businesses increased by $19.4 million due to increased Conttact Operations and Homeowner Servives Group revenues, partially offset by decreased
revenues in our Applied Water Group. Offsetting the increased revenues were $821.4 million higher operating expenses for the six months ended
June 30, 2008, These expenses primarily resulted from the impairment charge of $750.0 million which is discussed below, and increased expenses in our
Regulated Businesses of $50.8 million in the six months ended Jupe 30, 2008 compared to six months ended June 30, 2007, This increase was mainky
driven by higher employee related costs of $25.1 miflion due 1o $3.3 million of wages related 10 job reclassification of certain howly employees for
services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.3 million primarily atiributabie to the issuance of awards granted in connection with the
IPQ, an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases in 2008 and higher pension expense in 2008, In addition, the Regulated
Businesses’ maintenance costs increased by $10.8 million primarily due to higher rernoval costs, increased sxpenses of $3.6 million associated with a
project in 1llinols to maintain valves as well as increased tank painting expenses, Operating expenises in our Non-regulated Businesses also increased
by $22.7 million for the six montbs ended June 30, 2008 compared to six months ended June 30, 2007 as a result of higher operating and maintenance
expenses of $18.7 million which corresponds with their increased revenues as wek! 25 a gain on sale of assets of $6.1 million recognized in the six
monghs ended Jane 30, 2007,

Other iterns affecting income from continuing operations for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year
include lower interest expense of $2.9 million, as a result of the repayment of outstanding debt, increased AFUDC of $4.3 million aitributable 10 the
increase in the construction work in progress primatily in New Jersey and Missour and lower income tax expense of $8.3 million.

Regudatory Developments Druring the three months ended Junie 30, 2008, we recetved authorizations for additional annualized revenues from
peneral rate cases in California and Arizona amounting to $19.2 million. California’s rates were retroactive (o January 1, 2008, while Arizona’s rates were
effective in {he second quarter of 2008. In the firss six months of 2008 we received aunthorizations for additional annualized revenues from general rage
cases of $47.2 milkion. As of hune 30, 2008, we were awaiting final orders for three general cases that were filed in 2007, requesting $3%.6 miilion ir total
additional annaal revenues. Tn July 2008, the iineis rate case filed in 2007 for $32. § million was approved and received authorization (o increase rates
which will provide additional annualized revenues of $24.9 million. In the first six months of 2008, we filed general rate cases i ten additional states
that would provide $271.0 million of additional revenues, if approved as fHed. Of the rate cases filed in 2008, one state’s rates were effective in 2008
with 2n annvalized increase of $0.2 mitlion and is included in the $47.2 million of annualized revenue outlined above. The remaining amount of $270.8
miltion remains under consideration by state public utility commissions at this time. There is no assurance that the filed amount, ot any portion thereof,
of any requested increases will be granted.

Firancing Activities During the six months ended June 30, 2008, we met our capital resource requirements with intecnally generaled cash as weli
as funds from exteral sources primarily through commercial paper and the issuance of $200.0 million of private placement debt. In addition, as a result
of the impairment charge, RWE made a capital contribution in the second quarter of 2008 of $245.0 million, The cash was used fo reduce short-term
borrowings.

Initial Public Offering Our common stock began trading on the New York Steck Exchange on April 23, 2008. On April 28, 2008, the Company
completed its initial public offering (“IPO™). RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company's selling stockhelder, sold 58,0 million shares of the Company’s
commmon stock at a price of $21,50 per share. The selling stockholder granted the underwriters a 30 day option to purchase up to an additional
4.7 miltion shares of the Company’s
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stock at a price of $21.50. On May 27, 2098, the Company announced the underwriters’ partial exercise of their option to purchase 5.2 million shares to
cover over aliotments. The Company did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares, Prior to the IPO, the Company was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of RWE. After the IPO, and the exercise of the underwriters” over-allotment option, RWE owns approximately 60% of the Company’s
common shares.

On April 22, 2008, RWE contributed approximately 89.9 thousand shares of the Company’s comumon stock to the Compary and the Company
granted approximately 89.9 thousand restricted stock awards, 269.3 thousand restricted stock uznits and 2.1 miliion stock options, The awards were
tssued to the Company’s employees and certain non-employee directors under our 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Flan (the “2007 Plan”), The
total aggregate number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2007 Plan is 6.0 mililon, The restricted stock units and the stock
options were granted in two grants with “Grant 1" vesting on January 1, 2010 and “Grant 2" vesting on Janvary 1,201 L

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors” authorized 50.0 million shares of par value 30,01 per share preforred stock.
As of June 30, 2008 there are no shares outstanding,

Impairment Charge As previously disclosed in owr free writing and final prospeciuses, filed April 22, 2008 and April 24, 2008, respeclively, the
Company determined that it was reasonably lkely based in large past on an initial public offering price of our common stock of $21,50, that the cumrent
carrying valae of our goodwill which the Company recorded as a result of the 2003 acquisition of American Water by RWE and acquisition of E'Town
Corporation irs 2001, was impaired. At the fime the Company's initial public offering price of $21.50 was established, we were unable to determine i
there was any goodwill impairment or to provide a reliable estimate of the amount of any goodwill impairment, if any.

In light of the initial public offering price and trading levels in our stock since the date of IPO, we performed an interlm impairment test and on
May 9, 2008, concluded tat the current carrying value of our goodwill was impaired as a result of the current market price at that time and trading
tavels of our common stock, Based on that assessment, we recorded an impairment charge to goodwill related to our Regulated Businesses of $750.0
million int our financial statements as of and for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008. The Impairment charge was primarily due to the market price of
our common stock (both the initial public offering price and the price during subsequent trading) being less than what was anticipated during our 2007
annnal test. Also contributing to the impairment was a decline is the fair value of our debt {due to incrensed mavket inforest rates).

In developing cur estimated fair value of the Company's reporting units, significant jodgment was required, We determined the estimated fair
vahue of the reporting units utilizing a methodology consistent with its 2007 annual test, Whenever possible, market information including the initial
public offering price of the Company’s common stock and subsequent trading price was used to update our modeling assumptions, Our methodology
utilized a combination of the trading price of the Company's common stock, an estimated control premium, trading price markes multiples of peer
companies {regulated water utilities) and the Company's discounted cash flow analysis based on our five-year business plan were used, each of which
has differing weights, The majority of the weighting is applied to the traded price as this represents the market objective evidence of fair value with
minimal weight applied to the discounted cash flow analysis.

We may be required to recognize additional impairments in the future, depending on, among other factors, a dectine over 2 period of time in
valuation multiples of comparable water utilities, & decline over a pericd of time of the Company’s stock price or the lack of appreciation of the
Company’s stock price 10 a Jevel consistert with peer companies or inereases o equity value, A decline in the forecasted results in our business plan,
such &5 changes in rate case results or capital investment budgets or changes in our interest rates, may also result in an incremental impairment
charge.

As aresult of the impairment and in accordance with certain regulatory cormitments, RWE transferred $245.0 million tw us on May 13, 2008,
RWE is not obligated to make any additional capital contributions,
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Other Matters 1t Wiay 2008, owr California subsidiary reached an agreement with the San Lorenzo Valley Water District to sell ownership of our Felron
operating assets for consideration of $13.4 million. The diswrict’s payment will consist of $10.5 million in cash and the acquirer’s assumption of $2,9
miltion in debt, pending regulatory approval, The Felton water sysiern serves approximately 1,330 customers.

On July 28, 2008, our Board of Directors deciared a quarterly cash dividend paymenf of $0.20 per share payable on September 2, 2008 to all
shareholders of record as of August 13, 2008.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared To Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

For the three months ended Favorable
Jenede, (Unfavorndle)
%gﬂmrs}ﬂ thousands) _ N , 0§ __Change .

{(31,190)
830

(3,689)

5419}

Net income (loss) ) ‘ ' $ 4549 5 49078 5 (3.4680)

24

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



Table of Contents

“The following table summarizes ceriain financial information for onr Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses for the periods indicated (without
giving effect to inter-segment eliminations):

For the three months ended Jine 38,

2008 2007
Non- Non-
Regalated reguiated Regulated repukated
Huglnesses Buginestee Businesses Buslngssus

5:480

Opetatig £7) o :
$ 10,330

Adjusted EBIT' $134213 & 4681  $1409%8

M Adjusted EBIT is defined-as eamnings before interest and income taxes from continuing eperations, Management evaluates the performance of
its segments and atiocates resovrces based on severat factors, of which the primary measure Is Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not
represent cash flow for the periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative 1o net income as an indicator of the Company's
operating performance or as an allernative to cash flows as a source of liquidity. Adjusted BBIT as defined by the Company may notbe
comparable with Adjusted BBIT as defined by other companies.

Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownesship of water and wastewater utilities that provide water and wastewater services
to residential, commercial and indusizial customers. As such, o resuits of operations are significantly impacted by rates authorized by the state
regulatory commissions in the states in which we operate. The tble below details the annualized revenues resulting from rate authorizations, including
infrastructure charges, which were granted and became effective in the second quarter of 2008,

Awmpalized Rate
Increnses Granted

General rate case:

Missourt . 2.7

Operating revenues increased by $30.6 million, or 5.5% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the three months ended June 30,
2007. Regulated Businesses’ revenues increased by $17.6 miltion, o 3.5% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the
prior year, The Non-regulated Businesses’ revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $1 1.6 million, or 20.8% compared to the
three months ended June 30, 20607,

The increase in revenues from the Regulated Businesses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the three months ended June 30,
2007 was primarily due to rate increases obtained through general rate cases in Pennsylvania, Missouri and Indiana (which were granted and became
effective in 2007) as well as other states totaling approximately $25.0 milHon and a $1.4 million retroactive rate adjustment in California. These increases
were offset by a $12.6 million decrease in revenues related to reduced customer consumption, mainly in our Midwestern and Mid-Atlantic state
subsidiaries for the three mouths ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year.
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The following table sets forth the percentage of Regulated Businesses’ revenues and water sales volume by customer class:

Tor the threc months ended June 39,

Oporaling Revenyes Water Snles Yoheme

Customer Class 2008 07 2408 007

e,

10.7%

ibhies
Other waler revenues
ot ki

Wastewater service 3.7%
Ry

The following discussion related 1o water services indicates the increase or decrease in the Regulated Businesses’ revenues and associated
water sales volumes in gallons by customer class.

Waler Services—Water service operating revenuss from residentiak customers for the three months ended June 30, 2008 wtaled $302.6 milkion, 2
$7.9 million increase, or 2.7%, over the same period of 2007, mainly due to rate increases offset by a decrease in sales volume, The volume of water sold
to residential customers decreased by 2.19% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 to 51.6 biltion gallons, from 52.7 billion gallons for the same
period in 2007, largely as a result of wetter weather conditions in Catifornia and our Midwestern states.

Water service operating revenues from commercial water customers for the three months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $5.3 million, or 54%,
to $102.7 million mainly due to rate increases offset by decreases in sales volume compared to the same period in 2007. The volume of water sold 1o
commercial customers decreased by 1.4% for the theee months ended June 30, 2008, to 21.4 biflion gallons, from 21.7 biltien gallons for the three
months ended June 30, 2007,

Water service operating revenues from industrial customers totaled $26.5 mittion for the three months ended June 30, 2008, an increase of $2.7
miliion, or 11.3%, over those recorded for the same period of 2007 mainly due to rate increases offset by decreased sales volume. The volume of water
sold to industrial customers totaled 10.4 billion galions for the three months ended June 30, 2008, 3 decrease of 2.8% from the 10.7 billion galtons for
the three months ended June 30, 2007,

Water service operating rovenues from public and other customers increased $0.9 mitlion, or 1.5%, for the three months ended June 30, 2008 10
$62.9 million from $62.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 mainly due jo rate increases, Revenues from municipal governments for fire
protection services and customers requiring special private fire service facifities totaled $26.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, an
increase of $1.6 miltion over the same period of 2007, Revenues generated by sales to goveramenta) entities and resale customers for the three months
ended June 30, 2008 totaled $36.7 million, a decrease of $0.6 milkion from the three months ended June 30, 2007,

Wastewater services—oOur subsidiaries provide wastewater services in 11 states. Revenues from these services increased by $0.8 million, or
4.2%, 1o $19.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, from $18.9 million for the same period of 2007. The Increase was attributable 1o
increases in rates charged 10 customers principally in Atizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey.

Non-regulated Businesses’ operating revenues incressed by $11.6 mittion, or 20.8% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared o the
same period in 2007, The net increase was primarily atiributable 1o higher revenves of $12.1 million in our Contract Operations Group and $1.9 million in
our Homeowner Services Group, pariially offset by decreased revenues of $2.5 million in our Applied Water Group. The increase in Contract
Operations Group revenues was primarily due to incremental revenues associated with design and build contracts, as well as increased military project
revenues. The inerease from our Homeowner Service Group represented expansion into new geographic markets. Applied Water Group revenues were
lower due to the decline in design and build activity resulting from the downturn in new home construction.

Operation and maintenance Operation and aintenance expense increased $31.2 mifkion, or 10.4%, for the three months ended Jure 30, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior year,
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Operation and maintenance expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, by major expense category, were as follows:

. For the fhree months ended
June 38,

* Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified within operating expenses to conform 1o the 2008 presentation.

Production costs, including fuel and powes, purchased waier, chersicals and waste disposal increased by $2.8 million, or 4.0%, for the thuee
months ended Fune 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007. The increase was primarily the result of increased costs i cur Regulated Businesses
of $2.5 milfion, Fuel and power costs were higher by $0.7 million which can be atributed to increascs in electricity prices. Chemical costs also increased
by $1.7 milfion primarily due to rising chemical costs and waste disposal costs were also higher by $0.5 million. These increases were partiaily offset by
tower purchesed water costs of $0.4 million atiributable to the decrease in customer usage.

Employee-refated costs including wage and salary, group insurance, and pension expense increased $12.2 milkion or 10.2%, fot the three months
ended June 39, 2008 compared 1o the same period in the prior year, These employee related costs represented 39,8% of operation and maintonance
expenses for both the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. The employee related cost increase of $9.5 mitlion and $1.3 million in our Regulated
and Non-regulated Businesses, respectively, was primarily the result of $3.3 million of wages related to job reciassification of certain hourly employees
for services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.1 million mainly attributable to awards granted in connection with the 1PO, as well as
an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases. In addition, our Regulated Businesses’ pension expense increased $3.0 million or
34.4% for fhe three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to
the pension pans is deferred by certain of ovr regulated subsidiaries pending future recovery in rates as contributions are made to the plans.
Although cur pension expense in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, "Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions” ("SFAS 87") remained selatively enchanged, pension expense increased for the three months ended June 30, 2008 due 1o increased
contributions in certain of our regulated operating companies whose costs are recovered based on the Company's funding policy which is the
iz amount reguired by the Employee Retirement income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA™), rather than the SFAS 87 expense. The increase in the
contributions is attributable to lower than expected returns on plan assets.

Operating supplics and services inchude the day-to-day expenses of office operation, legal and cther professional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipment rental charges. For the three months ended June 30, 2008, these costs increased by $2.8 million or
4.4%, compared to the same period in 2007, Factors contributing o this increase include en overall increase in general office and wavel costs of §i.8
million mainly due 1o inflation, and highex fuel and other izansportation costs of $2.4 milkion, Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease in
remediation costs, mainly consuiting fees, in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of $6.2 miltion or 68.1%, to $2.9 miltion for the three months
ended June 30, 2008 compared to §9.1 miifion for the three months ended June 30, 2007. Included in the three months ended June 30, 2008 are
divestiture and JPO related costs amounting to $3.1 million compared o divestiture related costs of $2.3 million for the three months ended June 30,
2007. Corresponding with the increase in revenues, the Non-regulated Businesses” operating supplies and service expenses inereased by $3.5 million
for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, The increage is mainly attsiburable te additional expense in the
Contract Qperations Group assoctated with several operating contracts (including a design, buiid and operate project in Fitlmore, Califoraia), partially
offset by lower contracted services costs in the Applied Water Management Group due to the downturn in new horne consteuction and profits of §1.3
miltion as a result of the finalization and acceptance by the third party of a construction project.

Maintenance materials and services, which inchide emergency repaiss as well as costs for preventive maintenance, increased $10.9 million or by
41.4%, for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, Regulated Businesses’ maintenance materfals and
service costs iticreased by $6.3 mitlion for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared Lo the same period in the prior year die to costs of $0.8
miltion associated with a project in Blinois to maintain valves, higher cost of removal expenses amounting 1o $3.9 millon in certain of cur operating

a

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



fe of Con

companies and increased tank painting costs of $1.3 million in our New Jersey and Missouri operating companies. Gur Noperegulated Businesses’
raintenance expense increased by $1,8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the same period i the prior year primarily due to
higher frequency service Jine protection contract wsage by Homeowner Services Group customers 2s well a5 increaged costs in the Contract.
Operations Group mainly attributable to costs associated with new military operations and maintenance projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increased by $2.8 million, or 30.7%, for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared 10 the same
period in the prior year, The increase was the result of higher uncollectible accounts expense it our Regulated Businesses of $1.4 million and tn our
Non-Regulated Businesses of $1.4 million.

Other operation and maintenance expenses clude casualty and lability insurance premiums and regulatory costs. These costs decreased by
$0.3 miltion, or 3.0%, in 2008 primarily due to decreased insurance costs of $0.9 million for the three menths ended June 30, 2008 due to more favorable
claims experience compared fo the three months ended June 30, 2007, partially offset by increased reguiatory expenses of $0.6 militon,

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amostization expense decreased by $0.8 million, or 1.2%, for the theee moruhs ended June 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to depreciation rate adjustments resulting from rate ordets,
particedardy in our Pennsylvania subsidiary offset by increased expense due to additional utility plant placed n service.

General taxes General laxes expense, which includes 1axes for property, payroll, gross receipts, and other miscellaneous items, increased by §3.7
million, or 8.0%, i the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the three months ended Sune 30, 2007, This increase is primarily dus to increased
gross receipts taxes of $2.0 mitlion in New Jersey and increased property tax expense in Missouri of $0.7 miltion.

Gain on sale of assets Gain on sale of assets was $0.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to 2 gain of $6.2 miikion for
the three months ended June 30, 2007 due Lo non-recurring sales of assets no longer used in cur wiility operations.

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other incotne (deductions), decreased by $0.7 million, or 1.0%, for the three
tnonths ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the same period in the prior year. The decline is primarily due to the repayment of cutstanding debt with the
2007 equity contributions from RWE that were made to meet the capital structure expectations of various state regulatory cominissions. Also, AFUDC
increased by $3.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 as 4 result of increased construction work in
progress, Other iems contributing to the change include lower miscellaneous income for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the three
months ended June 30, 2007 primarily as a resuit of a desrease in jobbing work of $1.0 miltion and an increase in the amortization of debt expense of
$0.3 million for the three months enxled June 30, 2008 compared to same period in 2007 as a result of the debt réstructuring,

Provision for incame taxes Our consolidated provision for income taxes deereased $2.5 million or 7.6%, to $30.2 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2008. The effective 1ax rate was 39.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 39.5% for the three months ended June 30,
2007,

Net income (loss). Netincome decreased $3.7 miflion, to $45.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 from $49.2 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2007, The decrease is the result of the aforementioned changes,
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared To Six Months Ended June 30, 2007

Far the six months ended Favorable
Jung 39, Unfavorabie)
13

| -
SRt

A6
24808

Other, net 2,120)
7 g

94

e taxes

erations before com
64 :
_(ilross) fiom continying operations (eseomey (739400
O] sconfinked operationsing s - Lo AT
Net income {loss) 5 (6860860 % 51863 $ (738,840

“The following table summarizes certain financial information for vur Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses for the periods indicated (without
giving offcct fo inter-segment eliminations):

Yor fhe six manths ended June 3,
2008 26HKY
Nen- Non-
Repulated repulated Repuinted regulated
Businessos Businesses Businesses Businesses
s}
27910

$210,052

$206,113

- Adjusted EBIT" § 9263

N Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before intorest sad icosme taxes from continuing op iuns, Management cvatuntos the perfotmance of iis segmens and allocates seseuices based on soveral
factors. of which the primary measure ks Adjusted EBIT, Adjusied EBIY does not represent ‘exsh Bow for the periods prasented and sheuld nor be considered as an siternative 10 0L income us an
indiicator of the Company s operatng performance or as 2 aliernalive to cash flows a8 1 source of Higuidity. Adjusted EBIT as deffued by the Company may not be comparable with Adjused
EBIT as defined by other companies. .
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Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of water and wastewater utilities that services 10 residential, commercial and
industrial customers. As such, our results of operations are significantly impacted by rates authorized by the state regulatory commissions in the
states in which we operate. The table below details the annnalized revenues resulting from rate authorizations, including infrastructure charges, which
were granted and became effective in 2008,

Anauatized Rate
Inerepses Grantod
@n mitltons)

§ 585
Operating revenues increased by $68.9 million, or 6.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2007.
Regulated Businesses' revenues increased by $47.9 million, or 5.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o €he same period In the prior

year, The Non-regulated Businesses' revenues for the six months ended une 30, 2008 increased by $19.4 miflion, or 17.9% compared 1o the six months
ended June 30, 2007,

The increase in the Regulated Businesses’ revenues for the sis months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2007 was
primarily due to rate increases obtained through general rate cases in New Jersey, Permsylvania, Missouri and Indiana (which were granied and
became effective in 2007) as well as other states totaling approximately $58.1 mittion and a $1.4 million vetroactive rate adjustment in California made in
Fune 2008, This increase was offset by a $20,4 million decrease in revenues refated to customer conswinption, mainly in our states in the Western
region of the United States, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same petiod in the prior year,

The following table sets forth the percentage of Regulated Businesses' reveaues and water sales volume by customer class:
Ko the six months ended June 30,

Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume
2108 2007 2018 2007

Industrial

biic B ; B e e
Other water revenues 2.i% 1.8% — —

Wastewater service

The following discussion related to water services indicates the increase or decrease in the Regulated Businesses’ revenues and water
assoctated sales volumes in gallons by customer class.

Water Services—Water setvice operaling revenues from residential customers for the six months ended June 30, 2008 totaled $559.9 million, a
$24.5 million Increase, o 4.6%, ovet the same period of 2007, mainly due to rate increases offsct by & decrease in sales volume. The volume of waler
sold to residential customers decreased by 2.2% for the six months ended Fune 30, 2008 to 96.9 billion gallons, from 99.1 billion gallons for the same
period in 2007, largely as a result of wetter weather conditions in California and the Midwestern region in the United States.
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Water service operating revenues from commercial water customers for the six months ended June 30, 2008 increased by $9.5 millien, or 5.4%, 1o
$185.5 miliion mainly due to rate increases offset by decreases in sales volume compared to the seme period in 2007, The volume of water soldto
commercial customers decreased by 2.4% for the six months ended June 30, 2008, to 40.3 billion gallons, from 41.3 billion gallons for the six months
ended June 30, 2007,

Walter service operating revenues from industrial customers totaled $50.3 milkon for the six months erded June 30, 2008, an increas¢ of 54.2
million, or 9.1%, over those recorded for the same period of 2007 mainly due to rate increases offset by decreased sales volume. The volume of water
gold 10 industrial custoraers totaled 20,3 billion gatlons in the six months ended June 30, 2008, a decrease of 1.0% from the 20.5 billion galions for the
six months endad June 30, 2007

Water service operating revenues from public and other customers increased $4.7 million, or 4.1%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 to
$120.7 miflion from $116.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 mainly due 10 mte increases, Revenues from municipal govemments for fire
protection services and customers requiring special private fire service facilities totaled $51,9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, an
increase of $2.7 million over the same period of 2007, Revenues gencrated by sales to governmental entities and resale customers for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 totaled $58.9 million, an increase of $2.1 million from the six months ended June 30, 2007,

Wastewater services—Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services in 11 states. Rovenues from these services increased by 30,9 mitlion, or
2.4%., to $38.4 miltion for the six months ended June 30, 2008, from $37.5 million for the same period of 2007, The increase was autributable 10 increases
inrates charged to customers principally in Arizona, Hawait, and New Jersey,

Non-regulated Businesses” operating revenues increased by $19.4 million, or 17.9% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same
petied in 2007. The net increase was primarily ativibutable 1o higher revenues of $20.9 mittion in our Contract Operations Group and $3.8 million in our
Homeowner Services Group, partially offset by decreased revenues of $5.5 mitlion in our Applied Water Group, The increase in Contract Operations
Group revenues was primarily atiributable to incremental revenues associated with design and build contracts, as well as increased military
construction and operations & maititenance project revenues. The increase from our Homeowner Service Group represented expansion into new
geographic markets, Applied Water Group revenues were lower due to the dectine in design and build activity resulting from the downtum in new
home constraction,

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $59.8 mittion, or 10.3%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008
compated to the same period in the prior year,

Operation and maintenance expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, by major expense category, were as follows:
For the sis months ended

une 3t
2008 27

20463
1599

¥ Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassifted within operating expenses to conform to the Z008 presentation.

Production costs, including fuel and power, purchased water, chemicals and waste disposal increased by $5.9 million, or 4.5%, for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the same period in 2007, The increase was prisaily the result of increased costs in our Regulated Businesses of $5.2
million. Fuel and power costs were higher by $2.3 million which can be atteibuted to increases in electricity prices. Chemical costs also increased by
$2.3 miltion primarily due to rising chemical costs and waste disposal costs were also higher by $1.1 million. Offsetting these increases was lower
purchased water costs of $0.5 million.

EH

TN-TRA-01-Q005, Attachment



Table of Contents

Employee-related costs including wage and salary, group Insurance, and pension expense increased $29.9 million or 13.1%, for the six months
ended Yone 30, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year. These employee related costs represented 40.2% and 39.2% of operation and
maintenance expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The increase was due to higher wage and salery expenses of
$13.9 million and $3.4 million in ouw Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses, respectively, primarily resuhting from $3.3 miltion of wages related to job
reclassification of certain hourly employees for services performed, stock based compensation expense of $2.3 million mainly atiributable to the
isswance of awards granted in comneetion with the IPO and an increase in the number of employees and wage rate increases. In addition, our
Regulated Businesses’ pension expense increased by $6.3 million or 34,1% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same peried in the
prior year. Pension expense in excess of the amonnt contributed to the pension plans is deferred by certain of our regniated subsidiaries pending
future recovery in rates as contributions are made to the plans, Although our pension expense in accordance with SFAS 87 remained relatively
unchanged, pension expense ncreased for the six moswhs ended June 30, 2008 due to increased contributions in certain of our regulated operating
companies, which cosis are recovered based on the Company's funding policy which is the minimum amount required by ERISA, rather than the SFAS
87 expense. The increase in the contributions is attributable to lower than expected returns on plan assets.

Operating supplies and services include the day-to-day expenses of office operation, fegai and other professional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipment reptal charges, For the six months ended June 30, 2008, these costs increased by $8.6 million or 6.7%,
compared to the same period in 2007, Factors contributing 1o this increase include an overalt increase in general office costs and travel costs of §4.
million mainly due to inflation, higher costs of $0.9 million in our lltinois operating company due to legal proceedings associated with the Illinois valve
and hydrant project, and higher fuel and other transportation costs of $2.9 million. Partially offseiting these increases was 2 decrease in remediation
costs, mainly consulting fees in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of $8.0 million or 47.3%, to $8.9 million for the six months ended Jnae 30, 2008
compared to $16.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007, Included in the six months ended June 30, 2008 are divestiiure and IPO related costs
amounting fo $5.7 miltion compared to divestiture related costs of $4.% million for the six months ended fune 30, 2007. Corresponding with the increase
in revenues, the Non-regulated Businesses operating supplies and service expenses Increased by $7.9 mitlion for the six months ended June 30, 2008
compared 1o the same period in the prior year. The increase is mainly attributable to ndditional sxpense in the Contract Operations group associated
with several operating contracts (including a design, build and operate project in Fillmore, California}, partially offset by jower contracted services
costs in the Applied Water Management Group due 1o the downturn in new home construction and profits of $1.5 miilion a3 a result of the finalization
and acceptance by a third party of a construction project.

Maintenance materials and services, which inclode emergency repaiss as well as costs for preventive maintenance, increased $15.0 million or by
26.2%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o the same periad in the prior year. The Regulated Businesses' maintenance materials and
service costs increased by $10.8 million in the first half of 2008 mainly due to costs of $2,8 million associated with a project in Illinois to maintain
valves, higher cost of removal expenses of $5.4 million In certain of our operating companies and increased tank painting costs of $1.5 million in owr
New Jersey and Missouri operating companies. These increases were offset by lower main break costs in 2008 due to winter weather conditions in the
first half of 2007 primarily In our companies in the Midwest region of the United States. The Non-Regulated Businesses’ maintenance expenses
increased by $1,9 million as a result of higher frequency service line protection contvact usage by Homeowner Services Group customers as well as
increased cost associated with the Contract Operations Group mainly attributable 1o costs associated with new military operations and maintenance
projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increased by $1.9 milllon or 11.2%, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same
period in the prior year. The increase was the result of higher expense in our Non-Regulated Businesses of $2.2 miltion mainly due to increased
uncollectible expense on a number of contracts in our Applied Group as well as a credit adjustment recorded to the uncollectible expense account in
2007 partially offset by lower uncoliectible accounts expense of $0.2 million in our regulated subsidiaries a5 a result of an increased focus on collection
of past due accounts,

Other operation and maintenance expenses include casualty and Hability insurance premivms and regulatory costs. These costs decreased by
$1.5 smillion or 7.1%, in 2008 primarily due to decreased insuyance costs of $1.7 mitkion for the six months ended June 30, 2008 due to more favorable
claims experience compared to the six months ended une 30, 2007, partially offset by licreased regulatory expenses of $0.2 million,

Depreciation and emortization Deprecimion and amortization expense decreased by $1.5 million, or 1.2%, for the six months ended June 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior year, This decrease was primarily due to depreciation rate adjustments resulting from rate orders,
particularly in our Pennsyivania subsidiary partially offset by increased expense due to additiona] utility plant placed in service,
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General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes for property, payroll, gross 1eceipts, and other miscellancous items, increased by $7.9
million, of 8.4%, in the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the first six months of 2007, This increase is prinarily due to increased gross
receipts taxes of $3.9 million in New Jersey and higher property taxes expense in Ohio of $1.6 milion and Missonr of $0.7 million.

Gain on sale of assets Gain on sale of assets was $0.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to a gain of $6.1 miliion for the six
months ended June 30, 2007 due to non-recurring sales of assets no longer used in our utility operations.

Impairment charge The impairment charge was $750.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The 2008 impairment charge was primarily
due to the market price of the Company’s common stock {both the initial public offering price and the price during subsequent irading) being less than
what was anticipated during our 2007 annual test, Also contributing to the impairment was a decline In the fair value of the Company’s debt (due to
increased interest rates), There was no impairment charge for the six months ended June 30, 2007,

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other income (deductions), decreased by $2.9 million, or 2.1% for the six
wmonths ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same perlod in the prior year. The decling is primartly due 1o the repayment of outstanding debt with the
2007 equity contributions from RWE which were made 10 meet the capital structure expectations of various state regulatory commissions, Also,
AFUDC increased by $4.3 million for the six months ended ne 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 as a result of increased construction
work in progress. Other items contributing 1o the change include lower miscellaneous income for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the
six monihis ended June 30, 2007 primartly as a result of a decrease in jobbing work of $1.4 miltion and an increase in the amortization of debt expense of
$0.4 miltion for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period tn 2007as a result of the debt restructuring,

Provision for incone taxes Our consolidated provision for income taxes decreased $8.3 miliion or 24.1%, to $26.1 million for the she months
ended June 30, 2008 from $34.4 mitlion For the six months ended June 30, 2007, The Company recorded an effective tax rate for the first quanter 2008 of
{0.6%) which reflects the tax effect of the goodwill impairment ag a discrete item as wo consider this charge an infrequently oceurring or unusual event.

Net income {loss) Net income decreased $738.9 million, to a net Toss of $687 0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from net income of
$51.0 miltion for the six months ended June 30, 2007. The decrease is the result of the aforementioned changes.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our business ts capital intensive and requires considerable capital resources, A portion of these capital resources are provided by intemally
generated cash flows from operations, When necessary we obtain funds from external sources in the capital markets and through bank borrowings.
Our aceess to external financing on reasonable terms depends on our credit ratings and current business conditions, including that of the water utility
industry in general as well as conditions in the debt or equity capital markets. ¥ these business and market conditions deteriorate to the extent that we
50 longer have access 10 the capital markels at reasormable terms, we have access 1o revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank commitments of
$810.0 miltion that we currently wiilize 1o support our commercial paper programs and 1o issug letters of credit. See the “Credit Facilities and Short-Term
Debt” section below for further discussion,

In addition, our regulated utility subsidiaries receive advances and contributions from customers, home butlders and real estate developers o
fund consiruction necessary to extend service to new areas. Advances for construction are refundable for limited periods, which vary according 10
state regulations, as new customess begin 1o receive service or other contraciual obligations are fulfilled. Amounts which are no longer refundable are
reclassified to contributions in aid of construction, Utility plant funded by advances and coniributions s excluded from rate base. Generally, we
depreciate contributed property and amortize contributions at the composite rate of the related property. Some of our subsidiarics do not depreciate
contributed propetty, based on regulatory gaidelines.

We use capital resouroes, including cash, to fund capital reqairements, including construction expenditures, pay off maturing debt, pay
dividends, fand pension and postretirement welfare obligations and invest in new and existing businesses. We spend a significant amount of cash on
consiruction projects that have a Jong-term retwn on investment. Additionally, we operate in rate-Tegulated environments in whick the amount of new
investment recovery may be limited, and where such recovery takes place over an extended period of time, as our recovery is subject to regulatory lag.
As a Tesult of these factors, our working capital, defined as current assets less current liabilities, was ina net defickt position at June 30, 2008.
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We expect to fund future maturities of long-term debt through 2 combination of external debt and cash flow from operations. We have no plans
1o reduce debt significantly.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities primarily result from the sale of water and wastewater services and due 10 the seasonality of operations are
weighted toward the third quarter of each fiscal year, Our future cash flows from operating activities will be affected by changes ia the rate regulatory
environments; infrastracture investment; inflation; compliance with environmental, health and safety standards; produgtion cosis; customer growth;
declining per customer usage of water; and weather and seasonality, Cash flows from operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were
$141.3 miilion compared to $136.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007,

The following table provides a summary of the major items affecting our cash flows from operating activities for the six months ended June 30,
2008 and 2007

For the six months ended

June 39,
2407

$136,18)

(1) Includes depreciation and amortization, iimpalrment charges, removal costs et of salvage, provision for deferred income taxes, amortization of
deferred investment tax credits, provision for losses on utility accounts recelvable, allowance for other funds used during construction, gain on
sale of assels, and other non-cash items, net, less pension and postretirement healthcare contributions.

{2y  Changes in working capital include changes to accounts receivable and unbilled utility revenue, taxes receivable (including federal income},
ofher curtent assels, accounts payable, taxes acerued (including federal income), interest acerued and other current Habilities.

Cash Flows from Investing Actlvities

Cash flows used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $427.6 million and $279.4 million, respectively.
Construction expenditures increased $121.4 milfion to $426.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from $304.6 million for the six months ended
Fune 30, 2007 as a result of increased lnvestment in regulated utifity plant projects. We anticipate spending approximately $950 million on capital
investment in 2008,

Orar construction program consists of both infrastructure renewal programs, where we replace infrastructure, as needed, and construction of
facilitics to meet new customer growth, Also, an integral aspect of our sirategy is o seek growth through tuck-ins and other acquisitions which are
complementary to our existing business and support the continued geographical diversification and growth of our operations, Generally, scquisitions
will be funided initially with short-term debt and later refinanced with the proceeds from long-term debt or equity of ferings.

Inchaded in the 2008 planned construction expenditures is approximately $26 million to construct a new water ireatment plant on the Kentucky
River. On April 25, 2008, the Kentucky Pablic Service Conunission approved Kentucky American Water's application for & certificate of convenience
and necessity to construct a 20.0 million gaflon per day weatment plant on the Kentucky River and a 30.6 mile pipeline to meet Central Kentucky's
water supply deficit. The Kentucky project is expected to be completed by 2010 with an estimated cost of between 5162 million and $168 million.

On Deceriber 21, 2007, New Jersey-American Water, our subsidiary, signed an agreement with the City of Trenton, New Jersey to purchase the
assets of the city’s water system located in Ewing, Hamilton, Hopewel! and Lawrence townships for $100.0 million. The agreement was approved by
the Trenton City Council but requites approval by various regulatory agencies, including the New Jersey Board of Public Utitities, We can provide no
assurances that the agreerment will be approved.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities include the issuance of long-term and short-ferm deby, primarily through our wholly-owned financing subsidiary,
Amerioan Water Capital Corp. (“AWCC™). In addition, we have received capital contributions from RWE and intend to issuc equity in the future 10
maintais an appropriate capital strueture, subject to any resirictions in our registration fights agreement with RWE, In order to figance new
infrastrichire, we received customer advances and conteibations for construction (net of refunds) of $2.2 million and $15.7 million for the $ix months
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In connection with the KWE divestiture, we have made and will continie to make significant changes to
our capital structure throngh debt refinancing and equity offerings.

The following long-term debt wag issued in the fixst six months of 2008:

Interest Ameunt

. {in Thousands)

Semiornotes 6,35%
fateifinancingauthority 16ans and other ‘
3205

The foltowing long-term debt and preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirernents were repurchased or retired through optional redemption or
payment at maturity during the firstsix months of 2008:

Amount
Type _ Infexest Bpte Maturlty {In Thouspads)

bt
American Water Capital Corp,
Otligsisy

B iths
Orher subsidiaries

In the second quater of 2008, the Company completed an offer to exchange $750,000 principal amount of its 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017
and $750,000 principal amount of its 6.553% Senior Notes due in 2037 which ave both registered under the Securitics Act of 1933 {the “Bxchange
Notes™ for 21l $750,000 of its caurently outstanding 6,085% Senior Notes due in 2017 and all $750,000 of its currently owtstanding 6.593% Senior Notes
due in 2037, which have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Original Notes™). The Company did not receive any proceeds from
the exchange offet, nor did the Company’s debt level change as & result of the exchange offer. The terms of the Exchange Notes and the Original Notes
are substantially identical in all material respects.

Frotu time to time and as market conditions warrant, we may engage in Jong-term debt retirements via tender offers, open market repurchases or
other viable alternatives to swengthen our balance sheet.
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Dividends There were no dividend payments made for the six months ended June 30, 2008 or 2007, Our board of directors has adopted a dividend
policy, effective apon the consummation of the IPO, to distribute to our stockhotders a portion of our net cash provided by operating activities as
regular quarterly dividends, rather than retaining that cash for other parposes. Our policy will be to distribute 56% to 70% of our annual net income,
adjusted for certain non-cash items. .

On July 28, 2008, our Board of Divectors declared a quarterly cash dividend peyment of $0.20 per share payable on September 2, 2008 to all
sharcholders of tecord as of Aagust 15, 2008.

Contributions from RWE As & result of the impairment charges recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2008, RWE transfeoed $245,0 million on
May 13, 2008. This cash was used to reduce short-term debt. Contributions from RWE were $651.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007,

Credit Facilities and Short Term Debt
The components of short-texm debt were as follows:

June 30,2045

:B_g\ok overdraft
Total shori-term debt 243,418

Our access to external financing on reasonable terms depends on our credit ratings and current bus iness conditions, including that of the water
wtility indusiry in general as wetl as conditions in the debt or equity capital markets. I these business and market conditions deteriorate to the extent
that we no longer have access to the capital markets at reasonable terms, we have access 1o revolving credit facilities with aggregate bank
commitments of $810.0 miltion that we currently utilize to support our commercial paper programs and 10 Issue letters of credit.

AWCC has entered into a one-year $101.0 million committed revolving line of credit with PNC Bank, N.A. This iine of credit will terminate on
December 31, 2008 upiless extended and is used primarily for shortterm working capital needs. Interest rates on advances under this line of credit are
based on either the prime rate of PNC Bank, N.A, or the applicable LIBOR for the term selected plus 25 basis potns, As of June 30, 2008, $9.3 miliion
was owstanding under this revolving line of credit. ) R

On September 15, 2006, AWCC entered into an $800.0 million unsecured revolving credit facllity syndicated among a group of ten banks, This
revolving eredit facklity, which terminates on September 15, 2012 unless extended, is principally used to support the $700 milion commercial paper
program at AWCC and 1o provide up to $150.0 million in letters of credit. AWCC had no Joans outstanding under the net $800.0 miliion unsecured
revolving credit facility as of June 30, 2008

At June 30, 2008, AWCC had the following sub-timits and available capacity wnder the revolving credit facitity and indicated amounts of
outstanding commercial paper.

Eatioy of Credit Available Outsinnding
Sublimit Capagily Commereinl Paper
{In thoysends) \

Interest rates on advances under the revolving credit facility are based on either prime o LIBOR plus an applicable margin based upon our credit
zatings, as well a3 total outstanding amownts under the agreement at the time of the borrowing. The maximum LIBOR margin is 55 basis points,

The revolving credit facility requires us to maintain a ratio of consolidated debt 10 consolidated capitalization of not more than 0.7010 1.00. As of
June 30, 2008, our ratio was 0.55 and therefore we were in compliance with the ratio.

The average interest zate on commercial paper for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was approximately 4.2%.
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Debt Covenants

Our debt apreements contain financial and non-financial covenants, To the extent that we are not in compliance, we or our subsidiaries may be
resiricted in our ability to pay dividends, issue debt or access our revolving credit lines. We were in compliance with our réporting covenants as of
June 30, Z008.

Security Ratings

Onr access to the capital markets, including the commercial paper market, and their respective financing costs in those markets depend on the
securities ratings of the entity that is accessing the capital maskets, We primatily access the capital markets, including the commercial paper market,
thicugh AWCC. However, we do issue debt at our regulated subsicHaries, primarily in the form of tax exempt securities, to lower our overall cost of
debt. The foliowing table shows the Company's securities ratings 2s of June 30, 2008:

Moody's Investors Standurd & Ponr’s
Servite Ratings Service

‘ : BB+
P2 A2
On June 19, 2008, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services (S&P) downgraded 1o “BBB+"(stabie outlook} from “A-" {negative outiook) the senior

umseewred issuer rating of AWCC, Tn addition, S&P assigned a “BBB+” corporate credit rating to American Water and affirmed AWCC's “A-2" short-
term rating.

Moody's rating outlook for both American Water and AWCC is stable.

A security rating Is not a recommmendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency, and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

Mone of our borrowings are subject to default or prepayment as a result of a downgreding of securities aithough such a downgrading could
increase fees and interest charges under our credit facilities,

As part of the normal course of business, we routinely enter into contracts for the purchase and sale of water, energy, fuels and other services,
These conlracts elther contain express provisions or otherwise permit us and our counterpazties to demand adequate assurance of futore performance
when there ave reasonable grounds for doing so. In accordance with the contracts and applicable contract law, if we are downgraded by a credit rating
agency, especially i such downgrade is 1o a level below investment grade, it is possible thal a counterparty would attemnpt 1o rely en such a
downgrade as a basis for making 2 demand for adequnte assurance of future performance, Depending on our net position with & counterparty, the
demand could be for the posting of collateral. In the absence of expressly agreed provisions that specify the collateral that must be provided, the
obligation to supply the collateral sequested will be s function of the facts and circumstances of the Company's situation at the time of the demand. If
we can reasonably claim that we are willing and Hrancially able to perform our obligations, it may be possible to suceessfully argue that no collateral
should be posted or that only an amount equal to two or three months of future payments should be sufficient.

Current Credit Market Position

The liquidity cxisis that began i1 2007 as a resulf of the ¢ollapse of the subprime mortgage market has adversely impacted global credit markets
and, if it continues, could increase our cost of capital or impair our ability to access the capital markets.

At this time, the Company does not believe recent market developments significantly impact its ability to obtatn financing and expects to have
access to liguidity in the capital markets on favorable terms. In addition, the Company has access to unsecured revolving credit facilities, which are
not as dependent npon general markes conditions, with aggregate bank commitments of 3810 miltion, of which a portion is currently committed
primatily o backstop the Company's commercial paper program and letters of credit.

Barkef Risk

We are exposed 1o market risk associated with changes in commodity prices, equity prices and interest rates. We use a combination of fixed-rate and
variable-rate debt o reduce interest tate exposure. As of June 30, 2008 a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates associated with variable rate debt
would resalt in a $1.2 milkion decrease in our pre-tax carpings, Qur risks associated with price increase for chemicals, electricity and other commoditics
are reduced through contracts and the ability to recover price increases through rates, Non-performance by these commodity suppliers could have a
material impact on cur results of operations, cash flows and financial position.
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Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on Aprit 23, 2008, The market price of our commion stock may experience
fluctuations, many of which are unrelated to our operating performance. In particular, our stock price may be affected by general market movements as
well as developments specifically related to the water and wastewater industry. These could include, among other things, interest rale movements,
quarterly variations or changes in financial estimates by securities analysts and governmental or regulatory actions. This volatility may make it
difficuit for us 10 access the capital markess in the fumre through additional offerings of our common stock, regardiess of our finzucial performance.
and such difficulty may preclude us from being able to take advantage of certain business opportunities or meet business obligations.

lication ritical fin, ¥ stimat
Out financial condition, results of operations and cash flows are impacted by the meshods, assumptions and estimates used in the application of
eritical accounting policies. See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—-Criical Accounting
Policies and Estimates,” in our Foum 424(b)(4) prospectus flled on April 24, 2008 with the Securitics and Exchange Commission for a discussion of the
critical accounting policies.

Recent Accoupting Pronoencements

See Past I, Ttem 1 Financial Statements (Unaudited)- Note 2- New Accounting Pronouncements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 2
discussion of new rocounting standards recently adopted or pending adoption.

FYEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject (o market risks in the norme} course of business, including changes in interest rates and equity prices. For further discussion of
market risks see “Market Risk” in Part [, Ttem 2 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evalnation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensuve that information required 1o be disclosed in the reporis
filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act™), is recorded, processed, supamarized, and reported within
the time periods specified i the Commission’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Covapany’s
management including its principal executive and financial officers, as appropriate o aliow timely decisions regarding required disclosuse.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15¢b) of the Exchange Act, This evaiuation was done under the supervision and with the
participation of management, incluading our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Qfficer.

Based on this evaluation and because of the material weaknesses described below, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of June 30, 2008. Notwithstanding these material
weaknesses, management concluded that the financial statements included in this Form 10-Q for the three and six-months ended June 30, 2008 fairly
present in all matexial respects their financial position, results of operations and cash flows fos the periods presented in conformity with accounting
principles generaily accepted in the United States of America,

Material Weuknesses in Internal Control over Finuncial Reporting

A material weakness is a control deficiency or & combination of control deficiencies that results in more than 2 remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annuei or interim consolidated financial staternents will not be prevented or detected,

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control ever financial reporting. Our internal control over
financial teporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staterments in acoordance with genexally sccepted accounting principles. However, from 2003 to April 28, 2008, we were an indirect wholly-owned
subsidlary of RWE and, as a privately owned company, were 10t reguired to maintain a system of internal conirol consistent with the requirements of
the SEC and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, of to prepare our own financial statements. As a public reposting company, we are requized, among other things,
1o maintain a system of effective internal
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control over financial reporting suitable to prepare our publicly reported financial staternents in a timely and accurate manner, and also to evaluate and
repoit on such system of tntemal control, In particular, we ase required to ceriify eur compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the
year ended December 31, 2000, which will require us 10 perform sysiem and process evaluation and testing of our internal control over financial

" reporting to aliow management and our Independent registered public accounting fitm to seport on the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting,

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial staternents as of Decermber 31, 2006, we and our independent registered public

acconntants identified the following material weaknesses in our internial control over financial reporting:

»  Inadequate internal staffing and skills;

+  Inadequate controls over financial reporting processes;

»  Inadequate controls over month-end clesing processes, including account reconciliations;

v+ Inadequate controls over maintenance of contracts and agreements;

+  Inadequate conirols over segregation of duties and restriction of access to key accounting applications; and

«  Inadequate controls over 1% accounting and accruals,

Remediation of Material Wealnesses

Since jolning the Company in 2006, Denald L. Correlt, our Chief Bxecutive Offioer, and Ellen C. Wolf, our Chief Firanciat Officer, have assigned a
high priority 1o the evaluation and remediation of our intemnal controls, and have faken numerous steps to remediate these material weaknesses and to
evaluate and sirengthen our other internal contyols over financial reporting. Some of the actions taken include:

+  Increasing ouy internal financial staff numbers and skill levels, and using external resources to supplement our internal staff when
nEcessary;

v Implementing detailed processes and procedures related to our period end financial closing processes, key accounting applications and
our financial repozting processes;

+  Implementing or enhancing systems used in the financial reporting processes and month-end close processes;

v Conducting extensive training on existing and newly developed processes and procedures as well as explaining to employees Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requitements and the value of internal controls;

+  Enhancing our infernal audit s1aff,
+  Hiring a divector of internal control and a director of taxes;
+  Implementing a tracking mechanism and new policy and procedure for approval of all contracts and agreements; and

+  Retaining a nationally recognized aceounting and aaditing firm to assist management in developing policies and procedures surrounding
internal controls over financial reporting, to evaluate and test these internal controls and to assist in the remediation of internal control
deficiencies.

With respect to the materia) weaknesses described above, we have initiated a process to clearly delineate our confrol weaknesses and
formulated a remediation plan. We believe that we have substantially completed remediating most of the identified matesial weaknesses; however, as
our testing procedures have not yet been completed, we can make no assuzances as to the success of oor remediation efforts, As of June 30, 2008, the
Coxnpany had incarred $57.8 million to remediate these material weaknesses and to docament and test key financial reporting controls. We will need 1o
altocate additional resources to enhance the quality of our staff and to carry owt the resnediation of these material weaknesses. Based upon our current
assessment, we expect to complete the remediation of these material weaknesses during 2008 with an estimated additional cost of upprozimately $2.8
million. The Company cannot indicate with certainty that the material weaknesses will be remediated or what additional costs may be inoutred. The
Company needs-to finakize its remediation efforts of the controls and complete the testing of the effectiveness of controls prior to concluding controls
are effective, As a condition to siate Public Utility Commissions’ approval of the RWE divestiture, we agreed that costs incurred tn connection with
cur initial internal control and remediation initiatives would not be recoverable in rates charged to our customers. Elemenis of ow remediation
activities can only be accomplished over time, and our initiatives provide no assurances that they will result in an effective internal control
environment. Our board of directors, in coordination with our audit committee, will continually assess the progress and sufficiency of these initiatives
and make adjusirments, as necessary.
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The Company believes the additional control procedures as designed, when implemented, wiil fully remediate the above material wealnesses.

Changes in Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

Except as described above, there were no changes in internal coatrol over financial reporting for the three or six-months ended June 30, 2008,
that have materially affected, or are reasonably Iikely fo materially affect, the Company's interal control over financial reporting.
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PART 1. OTHER INFORMATION
1TEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Previously reported aunder “Business — Legal Proceedings” in the Company™s Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 24, 2008.

ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth in this repott, you should carefully consider the factors discussed In the “Risk Factors” in the
Company’s Form 424(b)4) prospectus filed Aptit 24, 2008, and our Form 10-Q for (he quarterly period ended March 31, 2008 filed on May14, 2008,
which could materiaily affect our business, financial condition or futere resulls,

1TEM 2, UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None

ITEM 3, DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
Nome

YIEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

in April 2008, in conection with the IPO, RWE Agqua Holdings GmEH, the Company's sole stockholder at this time, approved the adoption of the
Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorperation by written consent.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None

ITEM 6. EXHIBITE

Exhibit
Nuwber Exhibit Reseription

10,1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated May 15, 2008, by and between AWCC and the Purchasers named therein for purchase of $110,000,000
6.25% Series G Sentor Notes due 2018 and $90,000,000 6.55% Serics H Sendor Notes due 2023 (incorporated by reference (o Bxhibit 10.] 10
American Water Works Company, Ine.'s cutrent report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-34028, filed May 15, 2008)

%311 Cerification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer, purstant to Seetion 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

¥31.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financiat Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
*32.4 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

322 Certification of Bllen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
* filed herewith.
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Signatures

Puisuant to the requirenments of the Securities Exchiange Act of 1934, the registrant has duty caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, therennto duly authorized.

American Water Works Company, Inc,

{Registrant)
Augnst 12, 2008 s/ Domald L. Corell
{Daie) Ponald L. Correli

President and Chief Execotive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

August 12, 2008 {s! Elten C, Wolf

{Date) Ellen C, Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit frescrlption

HiS) MNote Purchase Agreemen, dated May 15, 2008, by and between AWCC and the Purchasers named therein for purchase of $110,000,000
6.25% Series G Senior Notes due 2018 and $80,000,000 6.55% Series H Senior Notes due 2023 {incorporated by seference to Exhibit 10.5 to
American Water Works Company, Inc.’s current report on Form 8K, File No, 001-34028, filed May 15, 2008)

#3111 Cerntification of Donakd L. Correll, Pregident and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

¥31.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act
*32.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Exeoutive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

*32.2 Certification of Elien C. Wolf, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section $06 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act
¥ fited hesewith.
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